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CARLOS R. DIAZ, CPA, PSC
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IIIDEPENDENT AUDITOR,S REPORT

To the Honorable Mayor and

Municipal tegislative EodY

Municipality of Loiza

Loiza, Puerto Rico

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activitiet each major fund

and the aggregate remaining fund information of Municipality of Loiza, Puerto Rico as of and for the year

ended tune 30, 2015, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the

Municipality of Loiza, puerto Rico's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. we did not

audit the financial statements of the business type activities'

Management's R6ponsibility for the Financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in

...orJ"r." w1h accounting principles generally accepted in the United states of America; this includes the

design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair

pres-entation of financial statements that are free from material misstatemen! whether due to fraud or

error.

Auditorr's ResponsibilitY

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit' We did not audit

the financial statements of Brisas de Loiza Project which represent 100% of total assets, net position

(deficienry) and revenue of the business type activities. Those statements were audited by other auditors

whose reiort has been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for

Espiritu santo Pro.iect, is based solely on the report of the other auditors. we conducted our audit in

accordance with a;diting standards generally accepted in the united states of America and the standards

applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Stondords, issued by the Comptroller

General of the united states. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain

reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement'

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the

financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment

of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. ln making

those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entivs preparation and fair

presentation of the financial statements in order to desi8n audit procedures that are appropriate in the

air.urrt"na"r, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entivs internal

control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of

accounting policies used and the reasonableness ofsignificant accounting estimates made by management'

as well as evaluating the overall presentation ofthe financial statements'

MEMBER:

American lnstitute of Certified Public Accountants

Puerto Rico Society o{ Certified Public AccountantsCPA f :;,:.'il:il$!.",".
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT (CONTINUTD):

We believe that the audlt evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our

audit opinions.

Basis for qualified opinion on governmental activities, general fund and aggregated remaining funds

The accounting records of the Municipality of Loiza related to interfund transactions and accounts payable

are not adequate. Accordingly, we were unable to obtain sufficlent evidence to support and satisfy

ourselves about the amount recorded in each major funds and aggregate remaining funds information as

due form/due to other funds and accounts payable, stated at 53,359,134 and S3,265,960 respectively, in

the total governmental funds column of the balance sheet.

Basis for qualified opinion on governmental activities

The net pension liability and deferred outflows/inflows of resources in governmental actlvities of the

government-wide statement of net position, and pension expense for the current period change in that

liability in governmental activities of the government-wide statement of activities were derived from the

application of the proportional share included in the unaudited financial statements, notes and required

supplementary information of the Employees' Retirement system of the Government of the

Commonwealth of puerto Rico, cost-sharing multiple-employer pension plan. We were unable to obtain

sufficient appropriate audit evidence about the proportional share used to determine the deferred

outflows/inflows of resources, net pension liability, and pension expenses of the governmental activities

and the information disclosed in the notes of the pension plan. consequently, we were unable to

determine whether any adjustments to these amounti and disclosUres were necessary. The net pension

liability and deferred outflows/inflows of resources represent 56 percent, 1OO percent and 37 percent of

the total liabilities, deferred outflows/inflows of resources and pgnsion expense, respectively, as of June

30,2OL5,while pension expense represents 12 percent of total expenses for the fiscal year then ended'

Summarv of opinions:

Governmental activities
Business type activities
General fund
Debt services funds
Aggregate remaining funds

Proprietary fund

Qualified opinion on governmental aetivities

Tvpe of opinion:

Qualified
Unqualified
Qualified
Unqualified
Qualified
Unqualified

ln our opinion, except for the effects of the matters descrlbed in the "Basis for qualified opinion on

governmental activities, general funds and aggregated remaining fund" and "Basis for qualified opinion on

governmental activities" paragraphs, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all
-material 

respects, the financial position of the governmental activities of the Municipality of Loiza, Puerto

Rico, as of June 30, 2015, and the changes in financial position thereof for the year then ended in

accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America'

Qualified opinions on general fund and aggregate remaining fund information

ln our opinion, except for the possible of the matter discussed in "Basls for quallfied opinion on

governmental activities, general funils and aSgregated remaining fund" paragraphs, the financial

statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of

general fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Municipality of Loiza, Puerto Rico as of

iune 30, 2015, and the respective changes in financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof

for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the united states of

America. 
2
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED):

Unqualified opinion

ln our opinion, based on our audit and the report of other audltor, the financial statements referred to

above present fairly, in all material respect, the financial position of the debt services funds, the proprietary

fund and business type activities of the Municipality of Loiza, Puerto Rico, as of June 30, 2015, and the

change in financial statements thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principle

generally accepted in the United States of America.

Emphasis-of-Matter

Newly Adopted stondards

As discussed in Note 1to the financial statements, the Municipality adopted new accountinB guidance,

Governmental Accountlng Standards Board (GASB) Statement No.68, Accounting ond Financiol Reporting

for pensions - on dmendment of GA58 No. 27, and GASB No.77, Pension Transition for Contributions Mode

Subsequent to the Meosurement Dote - ond Amendment of GASB Stotement No. 68, during fiscal year

2015. Our opinions are not modified with respect to this matter.

Restotement oI Prior Yeor Finonciol Stotements

As discussed in Note 8 to the financial statements, the 2014 financial statements have been restated for

the implementation of GASB Statements No. 68 and 71. .Our opinions are not modified with respect to this

matter.

Other Matters

Requi red Su pplementory lnlormotion

Accounting prlnciples generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's

discussion and analysis, budgetary comparison information and employees' retirement system information

on pages 5 to 11, 50 to 52 and 53 to 54, respectively be presented to supplement the basic financial

statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the

Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting

for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We

have appiied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with

auditlng standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of

,.nrgJ."nt aboui the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for

consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other

knowledge we obtained durlng our audit of the basic financial statements. we do not express an opinion or

provide Jny assurance on the information because the llmited procedures do not provide us with sufficient

Lvidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. We were unable to apply certain limited

procedures to the require supplementary information related to employees' retirement system

information applicable to Municipality, in accordance with auditing standard generally accepted in the

united State of America. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance In the information'



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR,S REPORT (CONTINUED}:

Other lnformotion

our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively

comprise the Municipality of Loiza, Puerto Rico's basic financial statements' The accompanying schedule

of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by U'S Office

of Management and Budget circular A-133, Audits of stotes, Locol Governments, ond Non-Profit

orgonizotions, and ls not a required part of the basic financial statements. such information is the

responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and

other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The information has been subjected to the

auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional

pro."dir"r, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting

and other records used to p,"p,," the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements

themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in

the United States of America. tn our opinion, except for the effect on the supplementary information of the

matter discussed in "Basis for qualified opinion on the governmental activities, general fund and

aggregated remaining funds" paragraph, the schedule of expenditures of federal awards is fairly stated in

.ii m.t"riat respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole'

Other Reporting Required by Goven ment Auditing Standords

ln accordance with Government Auditing stondords, we have also issued our report dated June 23' 2016,

on our consideration of the Municipality of Loiza internal control over financial reporting and on our tests

of its compllance with certain proririon. of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other

matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial

reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to"provide an opinion on internal control

overfinancialreportingoroncompliance.Thatreportisanintegralpartofanauditperformed|n
accordance with Government Auditing standards in considering M'unicipality of toiza internal control over

fi nancial reportlng and compliance'

@
CarlotR. Diaz. CPA, PSC

License No.275
Expire December 1, 2018June 23, 2016

Aguas Buenas, Puerto Rico

The stamp No. E210259 ofthe Puerto Rico

Society of Certified Public Accountants was

affixed to the original of this report'



COMMONWEATTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPATITY OF TOIZA

MANAGEMENf S DISCUSSION AND ANATYSIS

FOR THEYEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Management of lhe Municipotw ol Loiza of the commonwealth of Puerto Rico (the "Municipality'')

providls thls Mon ogement's Discussion dnd Anotysis of the Municipality's basic financial statements as

an overview and analysis of the financial activities of the Municipality for the fiscal year ended June 30,

2015. We encourage readers to cOnsider the information presented here in conjunction with the

additional information that we have furnished in the accompanying basic financial statements'

FINANCIAT HIGHTIGHTS

r The Municipality's in the Govermental Activities has reported assets and net assets (deficit)

amounting to 527,617,gM and s(22,199,a66) respectively, in the accompanying statement of net

assets, of which the most significant assets are capital assets amounting to S25 ,177,936 (97 percent

of total MuniciPalitt's ossets) .

r The Municiaplity in the same activities has reported total liabilities amounting to 550,510,097 in the

accompanylng statement of net assets, of which the most significant liabilities are bonds and notes

s(9,593,200) and net pension liability 5(33,187,461| (85 percent oI total liobilities),

. The Municipality has reported total revenues amou.nting to s11,995,/t@ in the accompanying

statement of Revenues, Expenditures and changes in Fund Balances-Gubernamental Funds, for the

FiscalYearEndedJune30,2ol5.Themosts|gnificantrevenuesamountinginthisstatementare
grants and entitlements and taxes were amounting to s7,o7L,r57 (59 percent of totol revenues)

and 54046,137 (34 percent ol total revenues), respectively'

o The Municipality has reported a change in net position of revenues over expenditures amounting

to ($3,751,477) in the accompanying statement of activities'

o The Municipalitys governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances (deficit) of

512,362,77O1.

. The Municipality has reported a deficit for the general fund amounting to $(7,985,389)'

OVERVIEW OF THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Municipality's financial statements include three components: (1) the government-wide financial

statements, (2) the fund financial statements, and (3) the notes to the financial statements (collectively

known as the basic financial statements)'

Government-wide Financial statements

Thegovernment.widefinanciolstotementsaredesignedtoprovidereaderswithabroadoverviewofthe
Municipality's operations and finance as a whole in a manner similar to private-sector business' These

statements provide short-term and long-term information about the Municipality's financial position'

which assist the Municipaliv, ,"n,g","nt to determine the economic condition at the end of the

fiscalyear.Thesefinancialstatementsarepreparedusingtheflowofeconomicresourcesmeasurement
focus and the accrual basis of accounting. This basically means that these financial statements follow

methods that are similar to those used by most businesses. They take into account all revenues and

expensesconnectedwiththefiscalyearendedJune30'2Ol5evenifcashinvolvedhavenotbeen
receivedorpaid.Thegovernment-widefinancialstatementsinc|ude:(1)thestatementsofnetassets
and (2) the statement of activities. 

5



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPATITY OF TOIZA

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUE)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Government-Wide Financial Statements (Continuedl

Statement of Net Assets

The statement of net assefs presents all of the Municlpality's assets and liabilities, with the difference
between these two items reported as "net assets" (equity). Over time, increases or decreases in the net
assets may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the Municipality is either
improving or deteriorating.

Statement of Activities

The statement of activities presents information showing how the Municipality's net assets changed

during the flscal year ended June 30, 2015. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the
underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus,

revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will not result in cash flows

until future fiscal periods (such as uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation leave). This

statement also presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for each function
of the Municipality.

Both of the abovementioned financial statements present all the' governmental activities of the

Municipality, which consist mostly by taxes and intergovernmenta I revenues (such as federal grants).

Most services provlded by the Municipality fall into this category, including culture and education,
general government, health and sanitation, public safety, public housing and welfare, etc.

Fund Financial Statements

The Municipality's fund financial statements, which consist of: (1) the balance sheet - governmental

funds and (2) the statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances - governmental

funds. These financial statements report the financial position and results of operations of the

Municipality's governmental funds.

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been

segregated for specific activities or objectives. The Municipality, like most other state and local

governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal

requirements. Each fund is considered an independent fiscal entity accounted for within a set of self-

balancing accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, fund equity, revenue, and expenditures. Fund

accounting segregates funds according to their intended purpose and is used to aid management in

demonstrating compliance with legal, financial and contractual provisions.

The fund financial statements focus on: (1) individual parts of the Municipality's government and (2)

reporting the Municipalivs operations in more detail than the government-wide financial statements.

For financial reporting purposes, the Municipality classifies its funds within the following fund

categories: (1) general fund, (2) debt service fund, (3) permanent improvement fund and (4) capital

projects funds (collectively known as the "governmental funds").
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COMMONWEATTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPAI,ITY OF TOIZA

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANAIYS|S (CONTINUE)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Fund Financial Statements (Continued)

Governmental funds are used to account for all of the services provided by the Municipality.

Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functlons reported as governmental

activities in the governmental-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide

financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows

of spendable resources. They also focus on the balances of spendable resources available at the end of

the fiscal year (June 30, 2015). This approach is known as using the flow of current financial resources

measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. These statements provide a detailed

short-term view of the Municipality's finances that assists in determining whether there will be

adequate financial resources available to meet the current needs of the Munlcipality, that is, evaluating

the MunicipaliVs near-term flnancing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial

statements, lt is useful to compare the fund information presented for governmental funds with similar

information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By

dolng so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the Municipality's near-term financial

decisions. n

For financial reporting purposes the Municipality has four major funds: (1) the general fund (2) the debt

service fund (3) permanent improvement fund.

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

The notes to the basic financial statements provide additional information that is essential to a full

understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and the fund financial statements The

notes to the basic financial statements can be found immediately following the basic financial

statements.

Government-wide Financial Statements Summary

As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of the Municipality's financial

position. ln the case of the Municipality, liabilities exceeded assets by $22,199,1t66 at June 30, 2015'

As previously discussed, by far the larSest portion of the Municipality's net assets reflect its investment

in capital 
"riet, 

(e.8', land, buildings, machinery, equipment and all other propefi)' less anY related

debt used to acquire those assets that is still outstanding. The Municipality uses these capital assets to

provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending' otherwise'

Municipality's Basic Financlal statement, not present increase in capital actives and acrued depreciation

expenses, because al the time prepare the financial statement, Municipal Administrative was

reevaluating actives files to stablish of capitalization. The following is a condensed presentation of the

Municipality's financial position and results of operations, as reported in the government-wide financial

statements including its component unit, Brisas de Loiza Proyect:
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COMMONWEATTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPAUTY OF TOIZA

MANAGEMENT',S DTSCUSSTON AND ANALYSTS (CONTINUE)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Government-wide Financial Statements Summary (Continued)

Condensed Statement of Net Assets:

Total net assets

June 30, 2015

s 2,440,008
25.L77,936
27 ,617 .944

1,5L3,387

4,564,345
46,045,752
s0,510.097

455,120
26s,580

20,933,521
9,868,034

(53,001.021)

s(22,199,455)

An additional portion of the Municipality's net assets (1 percent) represents resources that are subject

to restrictions on how they may be used. At the end of the current fiscal year, the Municipality has

reported positive balances in two categories of net assets'

The 2014 net assets has been restated to account for the implementation of GASB 58.

Condensed Statement of Activities:

Current assets

Capital assets

Total assets

Deferred outflows of resources

Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities

Total liabilities

Deferred inflows of resources:
Deferred property taxes

Deferred Municipal tax

Net assets/(liabilities):
lnvested in capital assets, net of related debt
Restricted

Unrestricted, as restated

Revenues:
Program revenues:

Charges for services

Operating grants and contributions
Capital grants and contributions

General revenues:
Property taxes
Municipal license taxes

Sales and use taxes

Construction excise tax
Grants and entitlements
Rent
Licenses and Permit
lnterest
Other

June 30. 2014

s s,394,543
27 ,033,225
32.427,468

727 ,917

3,048,03s
46,791.37 6

49,a39,411

2,707 ,837
363,679

2L,9e5,e37
9,230,lLL

June 30, 2014

5 4L9,L67
2.40,L26
a14.802

L,47 4,095

3,046,403
255,483
935,526
570,344

7,533,765
47 ,395
t,375

94,930
LLA4,794

s15.144.110

June 30, 2015

s 413,403
344,450
442.580

7,200,433

2,819,568
279,O7 4
aa3,877
63,618

7 ,07 !,L57
28,585

1,150
37 ,957

810.429

s11.99s.409

(Continued)

S(19.15s,142)

Total revenues
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COMMONWEATTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPATITY OF TOIZA

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANAIYSIS (CONTINUE)

FOR THE YEAR ENDEDJUNE 30, 2015

Government-wide Financial statements summary (Continued)

Expenses:
General administration
Public safety
Education, culture and recreational

community develoPment
Public works and sanitation
Health and welfare
lnterest

Business type-activities:

Housing
lnterest

Total erpenses

Change in net assets

Net assets - at beginning of year, as restated

Net assets - at end of year, as restated

Fund Financial Statements Summary

Condensed Balance Sheet - Governmental funds:

Total Assets - Major Funds

Total Assets - Nonmajor Funds

Total assets

Total Liabilities - Major Funds

Total Liabilities - Nonmajor Funds

June 30, 2014 June 30' 2015

5 4,494,145 5 2,L47,746

3,869,079 3.656.429

8,363,224 5.804.175

5,849,990 7 ,59L,947
185.464 119,878

6.035.454 7.71L.825

June 30, 2014

5 O,44s,O7el
(1,099,650)

(ss8,24s)
(84s,0s8)

(3,114,630)
(1,596,198)

(s39.306)

(381,1411
(58,s44)

(1s,751.8s1)

6ot tqrl
(18.547,401)

sGg1s5J42)

June 30, 2015

s (8,s38,92s)
(1,s50,263)

(676,4521
(935,607)

(2,34t,6271
(1,994,549)

(441.092)

(385,809)
(73.001)

$6947 .3r9\

13,7s7,4771

(19,155,142)

sl22t06619)

As discussed earlier, the Municlpality uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with

fi nance-related legal requirements.

Governmental Funds - The focus of the Municipalivs governmentol funds is to provide information on

near-term inflows, outflows, and balance ol spendable resources. such information is useful in assessing

the Municipalivs financing requirements. ln particular, unreserved fund bolonce may serve as a useful

measure of a governmenfs net resources available for spending at the end of fiscal year. The following

is a condensed presentation of the Municipali$s balance sheet and results of operations of

governmental funds:

Total liabilities

(continued)
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COMMONWEATTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPATITY OF I.OIZA

MANAGEMENT',S DISCUSSION AND ANAIYSIS (CONTINUE)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Fund Financial Statements Summary (Continued)

Deferred inflows of resources:
Deferred proPerty tax
Deferred municiPal taxes

Fund Balances - Major Funds

Fund Balances - Nonmajor Funds

Unasigned

Total Fund Balance

Condensed Statement of Operations - Governmental funds:

Total Revenues - Major Funds

Total Revenues - Nonmajor Funds

Total revenues

Total expenditures - Major Funds

Total expenditures - Nonmajor Funds

Total exPenditures

Revenues over (under) Expenses - Major

Revenues Over (under) Expenses - Nonma.ior

Fund Balance at beginning of Year

Fund Balance at end of Year

Capital Assets and Debt Administration

June 30, 2014 June 30. 2015

5 ?,ro7,837
363,679 s 45s,120

2,799,707 2,047,068
3,683,615 3,536,551

(6,027.058) (7.986.389)

1743,7461 (2,362.7701

13,667,392 LL,992,631

u W 787.030

o w !2,779'661

15,115,507 14,078,911
991,561 9L9.776

16.107.068 74.998,687

(1,,448,11s) 12,o7L,961],
63,367 lt47,O6sl

1,247.002 ft41,744],

s (143.746) s2.352,77o1

a) Capital Assets

The Municipality has invested S40,O78,3O2 in capital assets used in govermental activities, which have

an accumulated depreciation and amortization of s14,900,355 at lune, 30, 2015. The net capital assets

increased during ttle current fiscal year due to the current fiscal year capital additions 5165,188, which

were partially offset by the depreciation and amortization expense'

10



COMMONWEATTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF LOIZA

MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUE)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 
'UNE 

30, 2015

capital Assets and Debt Administration (Continued)

b) Debt Administration

The Municipality finances a significant portion of its construction actlvities throuSh bond and note

issuances, and through state and federal grants. The proceeds from bond issuances designated for

construction activities are commited in its entirety for such purposes and cannot be used for any other

purposes.

At June 30, 2014, the Municipalif;/s total bonded debt amounted to s10,300,063, consisting of bonds

5(9,593,204) and notes. 5(706,863) payables. Such debt is backed by the full faith and credit of the

Municipality.

Financial Contact

The Municipality's financial statements are designed to present users (citizens, taxpayers, customers,

investors and creditors) with a general overview of the Municipality'srfinances and to demonstrate the

Municipality,s accountability. if you have questions about the report or need additional financial

informition, contact the ruunicipility's Chief Financial officer on the 2nd. floor of the Loiza citv Hall,

Loiza, Puerto Rico.
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COMMONWEATTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPATITY OF tOiZA
STATEMEMT OF Ngr PosmoN

As OF JUNE 30, 2015

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT

GOVERNMENTAL BUSIT{ESS-WPE

J

J

J

J

J

J

l
l
l
l
_1

_1

-t

ASSETST

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash with fiscal agent

Accounts receivable, sales tax

Due from other governmental agencies

Other assets

Capital assets, net

Total Assets

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES:

Contribution to employeey retirement plan

LIABILITIES:

Accounts payable and accrued expenses

Uneamed income
Due to other governmental agencies

Long-term debt:
Due within one year

Due in more than one Year

Total liabilities

DEFERRED It{FLOWS OF RESOURCES:

Deferred municipaltax

Unamortized investment in employees'

retirement system

NET POSITION:

Net investment in caPital assets

Restricted for:
Debt service

Replacements and others

capital project and others

tlnrestricted

Total Net Position (deficiencY)

ACTIVITIES

s 102,9s3

2,216,873

2]-,408

98,774

25.177.936

27.6L7.9M

1,513.387

3,774,409

32,055

!,477,88!

3,478,s43
42.567,209

50.610.097

455,720

265,580

720.700

20,933,521

2,087,068

3,536,551

4,244,4t5
(53.001.021)

s122J99-466)

ACIIVITIES

5 292,728

26,626

791,056

1.110.410

27,564

45,956
1.744.O43

1.817.563

(998,943)

29r.790

s_1707J53)

TOTAL

s
39s,681

2,216,a73
27,408

98,774
26,626

2s.968.992

28.728,354

1.513,387

3,14t,973
32,055

1,477,88r

3,524,499

4437r.252

52.427,660

455,120

265,580

720.700

19,934,578

2,087,068
3,536,551

4,244,415

|.52.709.2311

st22B!6619)

The accompanying notes are an integral p.irt of these financial statements'
\7
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPATITY OF LOiZA
STATEMET\n OF AcnvmEs

FoRTHE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

PROGRAM REVENUES

OPERATING

GRANTS AND
CONTRIBUTIONS

5344,45O

FUNCTIONS AND PROGRAMS

Governmental activities:
General administration
Public safety
Education, culture and

recreational
Public relation, tourism and

citizen affairs
Public works and sanitation
Health and welfare
lnterest

Total governmental activities

Business type-activities:
Housing
lnterest

Total

CHARGE

FOR

SERVtCESEXPENSES

5 (8,s38,92s)
(1,s60,253)

(676,4s2]-

(93s,607)
(2,341,62].l
(t,994,s491

(447.092],

(16.488.509)

(38s,809)
(73,001)

(4s8,810)

CAPITAT

GRANTS AND
CONTRIBUTIONS

NET

(ExPENSEI/

REVENUE

5 (s,194,47s1
(1,s60,263)

(676,4521

(935,607)
(1,899,041)
(1,994,s49)

(447.0921

34?.4s0

s442,s80

M2580 (ts,707,4791

27 ,594
(73.001)
(4s.4071

s413,403

473.403

s116gu3r9 5413303 S344lrs0 s442180 s115J46.886)

(Continue)

I
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Net (expense)/revenue
General revenue:

Taxes:

Property taxes
Municipal tax
Sales tax
Construction excise tax

Grants and entitlements
Rent
Licenses and permit
lnterest
Other

Total general revenues

Changes in net position

Net position at beginning of year, as restated

Net position at end of Year

COMMONWEATTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF tOiZA
STATEMENT oF AcnunEs (corm uED)

FoRTHE YEAR ENDEDJUNE 30, 2015

GOVERNMENTAT

ACTIVITIES

s(15.701,479)

2,819,568
279,O74
a83,877

53,518
7 ,07t,!57

28,585
1,150

35,L73 '
810,429

\7,992.631

(3,708,848)

(18.490.518)

s(22.199.465)

BUSINESS.TYPE

ACTIVITIES

S (4s.407)

2,778

2.778

142,62e],

(664.s241

s(707.1s31

TOTAT

s(15.746,885)

2,879,568
?79,074
883,477

63,618
7 ,O7r,757

28,58s
1,150

37 ,957
8L0,429

11.995.409

13,7st,477],

(19.1ss.142)

5p2p06,619)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements'

_l
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPAUTY OF TOiZA

BATANCE SHEEr

GovERNMEtvrAt FUNDs

As OFJUr{E 30,2015

MAIOR FUNDS

ASSETS

Cash:

Cash in bank
Cash with fiscal agent

Receivables:
Due from other governmental agencies
Due from other funds
Sales tax

Total assets

UABILITIES AND FUND BATANCE

Uabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses

Advances from other governmental agencies

Due to other fund
Due to other governmental agencies

Total Iiabilities

Deferred inflows of resources:
Deferred municipal taxes

Fund balance (deficit)
Restricted for:

Debt service

Other purposes

Unassigned

Toial fund balance (deficill

Total liabilities and fund balance

GENERAT

FUND

5 30,776

3,46!
s,033

21.408

S 60.G78

5 2,814,932

3,3s9,134
1,,477,887

7.591.947

455.120
455.L20

(7.986.389)

(7.986,389)

s 60-673

DEBT

SERVICE

FUND

s2,O32,472

54,596

OTHER

GOVERNMENTAI
FUNDS

5 72,t77
184401

40,717
3,359,134

TOTAL

GOVERNMENTAT
FUNDS

s 102,9s3
2,216,473

98,774
3,364,t67

21,,404

5$04J7s

5 2,897,722
32,055

3,364,167

L4t7,a8L

7.771.825

455,120
455,t20

2,Oa7,068

3,536,ss1
(7.986.389)

|.2.362.770J,

sl304JZ5

s2.087-068 s3.656t29

s 82,790
32,055

5,033

119.878

2,087,O6a
3,536,551

2.087,068

s2.087.068

3.536.551

s3-555329

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements'
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF tOiZA
REcoNcrLAnoN OF THE GoVERNMENTAL Fu Ds

BATANCE SHEETTo THE STATEMENT OF N€T PosmoN

As OF JUNE 30, 2015

Fund balances in governmental funds

Amounts reported for governmentol activities in the Stotement of Net Position ore

different becouse:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and

therefore are not reported in the governmental funds

Deferred outflows of resources in governmental activities are not recorded in the
funds in the current period

Deferred inflows of resources in governmental activities corresponded to future
period and therefore are not reported In the funds

Long-term liabilities and accrual expenses are not due and payable in the

current period and therefore are not reported in the governmental funds:

Bonds and notes payable

Compensated absences

Claims and judgments

Accrued interest
Notes payable CRIM

Net pension liability

Net position ol governmentol activities

5 Q,362,77o1

25,\77,936

7,5L3,387

(25s,s80)

(9,s93,200)
(2,Osz,324].

(s0s,904)

1216,687l.
(706,853)

(33.187.461)

s.122,1s9A6-l

J

_l

J

J

J
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPATITY OF tOiZA
STATEMENI OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BAI.ANCE (DEFICIT)-GOVERNMEI{TAL FUND5

FORTHE YEAR E DEDJU'{E 30,2015

MAJOR FUNDS

DEBT

GENERAL SERVICE

FUND FUND

Revenues:
Taxes:

Property taxes
Municipaltaxes
Sale tax
Construction excise tax

Licenses and permits

lnterest
Rent
Grants and entitlements
Other

Total Revenues

Expenditures:
General administration
Public safety
Education, culture and recreation

Public works
Community develoPment
Health and welfare
Debt service:

Principal
lnterest

Total expenditures

Excess of revenue over (under) expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):

Operating transfer in
Operating transfer out

Total other financing sources

E{cess of revenues and other financing

source over {under) expenditures and

other financing sources

Fund balance deficit at beginning of year

Fund balance deficit at end ofYear

10.67s.241 . 
'*+

6,652,3s2
L,O75,537

466,093
2,035,605

646,209
r,712,750

s 1,906,33s
279,074
4a'1,,206

63,618
1,150

33,687
28,585

7,O71,L57

81o,429

12.588,546

(1,913,305)

15,435
(61.451)

(46.016)

(1,9s9,321)

(6.027,068)

st7.985.389)

5 913,233

402,677

1,486

L,017,000
473.365

1,490.365

1172,97s\

61,534
(1.199)

60,335

(112,640)

2.r99.708

s2.087.068

s 787,030

7A7.O30

896,310

23,466

9L9,776

(132,7 46\

(14.319)

(14.319)

(147,065)

3,683,616

s3t3655!

(2,2L9,026],

1143.7441

512,_f2Jt9l

OTHER

GOVERNMENTAT
FUNDS

TOTAT

GOVERNMEI{TAt
FUNDS

5 2,819,s68
279,O74
a83,477

63,618
1,150

35,L73
28,58s

7,85a,187
gto.429

t2.779,661

7,s48,662
!,o75,537

466,093
2,03s,605

646,209
t,736,216

1,017,000
473,365

14.998.687

(2,2L9,0261

76,969
(76.969)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements'
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNtCtPAUry oF tOiZA
REcoNctUAnoN oFTHE STATTMEtsT OF REVENUES, ExpENDlruREs

AND CHANGES lN FUND BAIANCE5 OF GoVERNMENTAI

FuNDsTo TH€ STATEMENT OF AcnvmEs
FOR THE YEAR ENDEDJUNE 30, 2015

_l 
Net change in fund balances - total Sovernmental funds 512,279,026\

a Amounts reported for Governmentol Adivities in the Statement of Activities ore

I ailferent because:

-. 
Depreciatlon expense on capital assets is reported in the statement of activities, but do

I not require the use of current financial resources. Therefore, depreciation expense is

-t not reported as expenditure in the governmental funds. (955,522)

I
I Covernmental payments of long-term debts as expenditures, whereas the payment

I Notes and bonds f ,038'917

-l lncrease (decrease) in accruals which do not require the use of current financial

I resources:
I tnterest 32,27!

-l Accrued vacations (82,870)

r Net pension liability |J.'522'6401

I
I

Chonges in Net Position of Governmentat Activities SI3J08A4I!)
I
I
I

j
I
I
I

I
I

I

t
I

I

I
I

I
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COMMONWEATTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPATITY OF IO.ZA
PROPRIETARY FUND STATEMEl{I oF FINANCIAL Posmoil

JUNE 30, 2015

AssErs

Current Assets:

Cash

Other assets

Property and Equipment

Restricted deposits

LlABtlmEs AND NEr PosmoN

Liabilities:
Current liabilities:

Current maturities of mortgage note
Accounts payable and accrued expenses

Long-term debt liabilities:
Mortgage note, net of current maturities
Tenants deposits held din trust

Net position (deficiency)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financlal statements.

-I

-I
J
l
-I

-I
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-I
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PhoPRtETARY FUND

BREAS DE LoizA PRoJEcr

5 67,2sO
26.626
93,476

79r,056

725,478

S1,1_1olt0

s 4s,9s5
t4,757
60,713

1,744,043
12,4O7

1.756.850

(7O7 ,7s31

sr-!10.410l
_t

l
l
J
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICTPAUTY OF tOiZA

SIATEMEIYT OF ACT&TnE5 ]IROPERW FU D

YEAR E DEDJU E !m, 2015

Revenues:
Rent
Financial

Total r€n enues

Expenses:
Administrative
Utilities
Operating and maintenance
Taxes and insurance
Depreciation
lnterest

Total Expenses

Change in net position

Net position (deficiency), beginning of year

Net position (detrciency), end of year

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

BRISAS DT loEA PRoJECI

s 413,403
2,778

4L6,t8L

t43,L47
L3,457
87,189
22,35L

119,66s
73.001

458,810

142,6291

|.6il,5241

sl7ozJsa
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COMMONWEATTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPAUTY OF TOiZA
STATEMENT OF CASH Ft-ows pRopRtETARy FuND

FoR THE YEAR ENDEDJUNE 30, 2015

Cash flows from operating activities:

Change in net position
Adjustments to reconcile change in

net position to net cash provided by
operating activities:

Depreciation
Bad debt expense
lncrease or decrease in:

Other assets

Accounts payable and accrued expense

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flow from investing activities:
lnterest deposited on replacement reserve
lncrease in other reserve
Deposits to replacement reserve
Purchase of property and equipment

Net cash used by investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities:

Mortgage principal payments

Net cash used by financing activities

Net decrease in cash

Cash, beginning ofthe yeal

Cash, end of the year

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

PRoPERTY FUND

BRtsAs DE LoizA PRoJEcr

5 @?,6zel

119,665
4,784

(3,590)
(2,276l,

75.854

(1,396)
(11e)

(24,000)
(10.ss4)

(36.469)

(42,089)

(42.089)

(2,7O4],

69.9s4

s_672s0
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COMMONWEATTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF LOiZA

NorEs To THE FrNANcar STATEMENTS

JUNE 30,2015

ORGANIZATION

The Municipality of Loiza (the Municipality) is a political and legal entity with full legislative and

administrative faculties in every affair of municipal character, with perpetual succession, existence

and legal personality separate and independent from the governmental of the commonwealth of

Puerto Rico.

The municipal government is comprised of the executive and legislative bodies, which are elected

every four years in the Puerto Rico general elections. The executive power is exercised by the Mayor

and the legislative power by the Municipal Legislative Body, which has thirteen members.

The Municipality provides the following services to its community: health, public works, educatlon,

public safety, housing, community and social services, welfare, culture and recreation, as well as

many other general and administrative services.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POTICIES

The accounting and reporting policies of the Municipality relating to the funds included in the

accompanying tasic financial statements conform to accountlng principles generally accepted in the

United States of America applicable to state and local governments. Generally accepted accounting

principles for local governments include those prlnciples prescribed by the Governmental

Accounting Standards Board (GASB), the American lnstitute of Certified Public Accountants in the

publication entitled Audits of State and Local Governmental Units and by the Financial Accounting

Standards Board (when applicable). The more significant policies of the Municipality are described

below.

Reporting entity

A reporting entity consists of the primary government, component units, and other organizations

that are inaluded to ensure that financial statements are not misleading. The primary government

of the Municipality consists of all funds and departments that are not legalty separate from the

Municipality. For the Municipality of Loiza, these include various services such as police protection,

recreation iincludlng parks), street maintenance and repair, sanitation, and general adminlstrative

services. The operation of each of these activities is directly controlled by Municipality's Legislative

Body through the budgetary process.

component units are legally separate organizations for which the Municipality is financially

accountable. The Municipality has no component units'

Government wide and fund financial statements

Basic financial statements include both governments-wide and fund financial statements.

22
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COMMONWEAI.TH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF IOIZA
NorEs To THE FtNANctAt srArEMENrs (Co INUED)

JUNE 30, 2015

2. SUMMARY OF StGNtFtCANT ACCOUNTTNG pOUCtES (CONTTNUED)

Government-wide statements

The government-wide financial statements (consists of the statement of net position and the
statement of activities) these statements report information on all the activities of the primary
government and its component units. For the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been
removed from these statements. Governmental activities which normally are supported mainly by
taxes and intergovernmental revenues are reported separately from business-type activities, which
rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support. Likewise, the primary government is
reported separately from certain legally separate component units for which the primary
government is financially accountable.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given
function or segments are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly
identifiable with a specific function or segment. Program revenues Include a) charges to customers
or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit.from goods, services, or privileges provided by a
given function or segment and b) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the
operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not
properly included among program revenues are reported insteSd as general revenues.

Program-specific capital and operating grant and contributions consist of transactions that are
either mandatory or voluntary non-exchange transactions with other governments, organizations, or
individuals that restrict the resources for use in a particular program. Capital grants and
contributions consist of capital. assets or resources that are restricted for capital purposes - to
purchase, construct or renovate capital assets associated with a specific program. Operating grants
and contributions consist of resources that are required to be used to finance the costs of operating
a specific program or can be used either for operating or capital purposes of a specific program.
Restricted capital and operating grants and contributions are program revenues because they are
specifically attributable to a program are reduce the net expense of that program to the
Municipality. They are reported net of estimated uncollectible amounts.

Fund fi nancial statements

The fund financial statements segregate transactions related to certain functions or activities in
separate funds in order to aid financial management and to demonstrate leBal compliance. These
statements present each major fund as a separate column on the fund financial statements; all non-
major funds are aggregated and presented in a single column.

The Municipality reports the following major governmental funds:

A) General Fund

This is the operatinB fund of the Municipality and accounts for all financial resources, except
those required to be accounted for in another fund.
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COMMONWEATTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPATITY OF TOiZA

NoTEs To THE FINANCIAI STATEMENTS (coNTINuED}

JUNE 30, 2015

2. SUMMARY OF S|GNtFtCANT ACCOUNTTNG pouctEs (coNTtNUED)

B) Debit service fund

The fund accounts for resources accumulated and payments made for principal and interest on
long term general obligation debt of governmental funds.

Measurement focus, basis of accounting and financial statement presentation

The government-wide financial statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities, both
government and business type activities, are presented using the economic resources measurement
focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are
recorded at the time the liability is incurred, regardlesi of the timing of related cash fjows. property
taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are
recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been
met.

The governmental fund financial statements are presented using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon
as they are both measurable and available. Under this method revenues are considered to be
available when they are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay
liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the government considers revenues to be available
if they are collected within 50 days of the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures generally are
recorded when a liability is incurred, except for debt service, compensated absences and claims
and judgments expenditures which are reported when payment is due.

Property taxes, franchise taxes, licenses, and interest associated with the current fiscal period are all
considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current
fiscal period. only the portion of special assessments receivable due within the current fiscal period
is considered to be susceptible to accrual as revenue of the current period. All other revenue items
are considered to be measurable and available only when cash is received by the government.

As a general rule the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide
financial statements. Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or
applicants for goods, services, or privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3)
capital grants and contributions, including special assessments. lnternally dedlcated resources are
reported as general revenues rather than as program revenues. Likewise, generat revenues include
all taxes.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the government's policy
to use restricted resources first, than unrestricted resources as they are needed.
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPATITY OF tOiZA
NoTEs To THE FINANCIAI STATEMENTS (coNTINUED)

JUNE 30, 2015

SUMMARY OF StGNtFtCANT ACCOUNTTNG pOUCtES (CONTTNUED)

Measurement focus, basis of accounting and financial statement presentation (continued)

Proprietary fund financial statements include a statement of net position, a statement of revenues,
expenses and changes in fund nets, and statements of cash flows for the proprietary fund which
include a low income housing project know as Brisas De Loiza Project.

Proprietary funds are accounted for using the "economic resources" measurement focus and the
accrual basis of accounting. Accordingly, all assets and liabilitles (whether current or noncurrent)
are include on the statement of net assets. The statement of revenues, expenses and change in
fund net position present increases (revenues) and decrease (expenses) in total net position. Under
the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized in the period in which they are earned
while expenses are recognized in the period in which the liabllity ls incurred.

operatlng revenues in the proprietary fund are those revenues that are generated from the primary

operating of the fund. All other revenues are reported as non-operating revenues. Operating
expenses are those expenses that are essential to the primary.operations of the fund. All other
expenses are reported as non-operatinS expenses.

Cash, cash equivalents, cash with fiscal agent and investmentJ

The Municipality's finance director is responsible for investing available resources. The Municipality
is restricted by law to invest only in savings accounts and certificates of deposit with banks qualified

as a depository of public funds by the Puerto Rico Treasury Department (PRTD) or ln instruments of
the Government Development Bank for Puerto Rico (GDB). The Municipality's policy is to invest any

excess cash in interest bearing deposits with institutions qualified by the PRTD. Earnings from these

funds are recorded in the corresponding fund as interest income.

Cash with fiscal agent in the governmental fund consists of unused proceeds from bonds and notes

issued for the acquisition and construction of ma.ior capital improvements. Cash with fiscal agent in

the debt service fund represents special additional property tax collections retained by the

Municipal Revenue Collection Center (CRIM) and restricted for the payment of the Municipality's

debt service, as established by law.

The Municipality considers all investments with an origlnal maturity of three months or less to be

cash equivalents.

pursuant to the Statement of lnvestment Guidelines for the Government of the Commonwealth of
Puerto Rico the balances deposited in commercial banks by the Municipality are insured by the

Federal Deposit lnsurance Corporation (FDIC) generally up to a maximum of S250,000 per depositor.

ln addition, public funds deposited in commercial banks by the Municipality are fully collateralized

for the amount in excess of federal depository insurance. All securities pledged as collateral are

held by agents designated by the Commonwealth's secretary of Treasury but not in the

Municipality's name. Deposits with GDB are uninsured and uncollateralized and thus represent a

custodial credit risk, because in the event that this financial institution fails, the Municipality may

not be able to recover these deposits.
25
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COMMONWEATTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPATITY OF TOiZA

NorEs To THE FTNANCTAL srArEMENrs (Coutruueo)

JUNE 30, 2015

2. SUMMARY OF StGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POUCIES (CONTINUED)

Cash, cash equivalents, cash with fiscal agent and investments (Continued)

The GDB'S liquidity was adversely affected by a significant increase in credit spreads for obligations
of the Commonwealth and its public corporations, the Commonwealth's limited capital market

access, and a significant reduction of liquidity in the local Puerto Rico capital markets. Then, the
credit rating downgrades could further adversely affect the GDB's liquidity. However, no losses

related to defaults by GDB on deposit transactions have been incurred by the Municipality through
June 30, 2015.

lnterfund receivables and payables

Activities between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at
the end of the fiscal year are referred to as either due to/from other funds (i.e., the current portion
of interfund loans) or advances tofrom other funds (i.e., the non-current portion of interfund

25 - 50 years

20 - 50 years

5 - 10 years

3 - 20 years

loans). lnterfund receivables and payables between funds withjn the governmental activities are

eliminated in the statement of net position.

Capital assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure (which ls normally
immovable and of value only to the Municipality, such as roads, bridges, streets sidewalks, and

drainage system), are reported in the government-wide financial statements.

Capital assets purchased or acquired are carried at historical cost or estimated historical cost.

contributed assets are recorded at fair market value as of the date donated. Additions,

improvements and other capital outlays that significantly extend the useful life of an asset are

capitalized. Other costs incurred for repairs and maintenance are expensed as incurred. When

historical cost is not available it is estimated using historic sales of the year of the acquisition of the

related capital assets.

Depreciation in capital assets is calculated on the straight-line basis over the following estimated

useful lives:

lnfrastructure
Building and building improvement
Furniture and fixtures
Vehicles and equipment
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COMMONWEAI.TH OF PUERTO RICO

uuurcrpatrw or toize
NoTEs To THE FINANCIAI STATEMEMTS (coNnNUED)

JUNE 30, 2015

2. SUMMARY OF StGNtFTCANT ACCOUNTTNG pouCtES (CONTTNUED)

lmpairment of Capital Assets

The Municipality periodically evaluates long-term assets for impairment in accordance with GASB
Statement No.34, (Basic Finonciol Stotements - and Monogement's Discussion ond Anolysis - for
Stote ond Locol Governments)and GASB No.42, (Accounting and Finonciol Reporting for lmpoirment
of Cdpitol Assets ond for lnsuronce Recoveries Governments) are required to evaluate prominent
events or changes in circumstances affecting capital assets to determine whether impairment of a
capital asset has occurred. Such events or changes in circumstances that may be indicative of
impairment include evidence of physical damage, enactment or approval of laws or regulations or
other changes in environmental factors, technological changes or evidence of obsolescence,
changes in the manner or duration of use of a capital asset, and construction stoppage. A capital
asset generally should be considered impaired if both (a) the decline in servlce utility of the capital
asset is large in magnitude and (b) the event or change in circumstance is outside the normal life
rycle of the capital asset.

lmpaired capital assets that will no longer be usei by th" gov€rnment should be reported at the
lower of carrying value or fair value. lmpairment losses on capital assets that will continue to be
used by the government should be measured using the method that best reflects the diminished
service utility of the capital asset. lmpairment of capital assets with physical damage generally
should be measured using a restoration cost approach, an approach that uses the estimated cost to
restore the capital asset to identify the portion of the historical cost of the capital asset that should
be written off. lmpairment of capital assets that are affected by enactment or approval of laws or
regulations or other changes in environmental factors or are subject to technological changes or
obsolescence generally should be measured using a service units approach, an approach that
compares the service units provided by the capital asset before and after the impairment event or
change in circumstance. lmpairment of capital assets that are subject to a change in manner or
duration of use generally should be measured using a service units approach, as described above, or
using deflated depreciated replacement cost, an approach that quantifies the cost of the service
currently belng provided by the capital asset and converts that cost to historical cost.

Fund balance

The fund balance amounts are reported as nonspendable restricted, committed, assigned and
unassigned, based on the relative strength of the constraints that control how specific amounts can

be spent, as described follows:

.i Nonsoendable - Represent resources that cannot be spent readily with cash or are legally
or contractually required not to be spent, including but not limited to inventories, prepaid
items, long-term balances of loans and notes receivable.

.:. Restricted - Represent resources that can be spent only for the specific purposes stipulated
by constitutional provisions, external resource providers (externally imposed by creditors or
grantors), or through enabling legislation (that is, legislation that creates a new revenue
sources and restrict its use). Effectively, restrictions may be changed or lifted only with the
consent of resource providgrs.
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF tOiZA
NoTEs To THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT5 (CoNTINUED)

JUNE 30, 2015

2. SUMMARY OF StGNTFICANT ACCOUNTING POLtCtES (CONTINUED)

Fund balance (Continued)

Committed - Represent resources used for specific purposes, imposed by formal action of
the entih/s highest level of decision making authority (governing body through resolutions)
and can only be charged by similar resolutions, no later than the end of the fiscal year.

Assisned - Represent resources intended to be used by the entity for specific purposes but
do not meet the criteria to be classified as restricted or committed (generally resolutions
approved by the governing body). lntent can be expressed by the governing body, or by and
official or body to which the Boverning body delegates authority in conformity with the
bylaws of the Municipality. ln governmental funds other than the general fund, assigned
fund balance represents the remalning amount that is not restricted or committed.

Unassisned - Represent the residual classification for the entity's general fund and includes
all spendable amounts not contained in the other classifications. ln other funds, the
unassigned classification is used only to report a deficit balance resulting from overspending
for specific purpose for which amounts had been restricted, committed, or assigned.

Risk financing

The Municipality carries insurance to cover casualty, theft, tort claims and other losses. Cost of
insurance policies deducted from the gross property tax collections by the Municipal Revenue

Collection Center (the "CRlM") for the year ended June 30, 2015 amounted to approximately

S131,615. The current insurance policies have not been cancelled or terminated. The CRIM also

deducted approximately 5285,153 for workers compensation insurance covering all municipal
employees.

Compensated absences

Employees accumulate vacation leave at a rate of 2.5 days per month up to maximum of 60 days.

Unpaid vacation time accumulated is fully vested to the employees from the first day of work.
Employees accumulate sick leave at a rate of 1.5 days per month up to a maximum 90 days. ln the
event of employee resignation, the employee is paid for accumulated vacations days up to the
maximum allowed.

Separation from employment prior to use of all or part of the sick leave terminates all rights for
compensation, except for employees with ten years or more of service who are entitled to sick leave

pay up to the maximum allowed.

Employees' maximum allowed vacations and vested sick benefits are accounted for in the Statement

of Net Position.

*

.:.
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALIW OF tOiZA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED}

JUNE 30, 2015

suMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POIICIES (CONTINUED)

Pensions

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred

inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net

position of Employees' Retirement system (ERS) and additions to/deductions from ERS fiduciary net

position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by ERS. For this purpose,

benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and

payable in accordance with the benefit terms.

The Municipality adopted the statement no. 68 of the Governmentot Accounting standord Boord

Accounting ond Finonciol Reporting 1or Pension (GASB 68/ for the year ended June 30, 2015 which

requires that the pension expenses, as well as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows

of resources related to pension be recognized for employer's proportionate share of collective

pension expense and collective deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources

ielated to pensions. The employer's proportionate share should be determined using the

employer's proportion of the employee contribution.

FUTURE ADOPTION OF ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

* GASB Statement No.69, Government combinotion ond Disposol of Government operations' This

statement is effective for periods beginning after December L5,ZOf4'

statement No.72, Foir value Measurement and Apptication - Effective Date: The requirements

of thls statement are effective for financial statements for reporting periods beginning after

June 15, 2015.

statement No.73, Accounting ond Financiol Reporting for Pensions ond Related Assets That Are

Not within the scope of GASB Stotement 68, ond Amendments to Certain. Provisions of GASB

statements 67 ond 58 - Effective Date: The provisions in statement 73 are effective for fiscal

years beginning after June 15, 2015-except those provisions that address employers and

governmental nonemployee contributing entlties for pensions that are not within the scope of

itatement 68, which are effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15' 2016'

Statement No.74, Financiol Reporting for Postemployment Benefit Plons Other Thon Pension

p/ons - Effective Date: The provisions in Statement 74 are effective for fiscal years beginning

after June \5,2016.

Statement No. 75, Accounting and Finonciol Reportinq for Postemployment Eenefits Other Thon

pensions- Effective Date: The provisions in Statement 75 are effective for fiscal years beginning

after June 75,20L7.

GASB Statement No. 76, Ihe Hierarchy of Generolly Accepted Accounting Principles for stote ond

Local Governmenfs - Effective Date: The provisions in Statement 76 are effective for reporting

periods beginning after June 15, 2015.
79
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COMMONWEATTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPATIW OF LOiZA
NorEs To THE FtNANcaL STATEMENTS (CoNTrruuro)

JUNE 30, 2015

suMMARY OF StGNtFtCANT ACCOUNTTNG pOLtctEs (coNTtNUED)

FUTURE ADOPTION OF ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS {CONTINUED)

{' 6458 Statement No. 77, Tox Abotement Disclosures - Effective Date: The requlrements of this
Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after December L5, 2015. Earlier
application is encouraged.

* GASB Statement No.78, Pensions Provided through Certoin Multiple-Employer Defined Benefit
Pension Plans - Effective Date: The requirements of this Statement are effective for reportinB
periods beginning after December 15, 2015. Earlier application is encouraged.

* GASB Stotement No.79, Certoin Externol lnvestment Pools ond Pool Porticipants - Effective Date:
The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15,
2015, except for the provisions in paragraphs L8, 79, 23-26, and 40, which are effective for
reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2015. Earlier application is encouraged.

The Municipality management has not determined the im;act in the Municipality financial
statements the future adoption of these GASB Statements.

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, and disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and

expenditures/expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Subsequent Events

Management has evaluated subsequent events through June 23, 2016, the date the financial

statements were evaluated to be issued.

PROPERTY TAX

The personal property tax is self assessed by the taxpayer on a return, which is to be filed by May 15

of each year with the Municipal Revenue Collector Center (the CRIM), a governmental entity created
by the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico. Real property tax is assessed by the CRIM on each piece of
real state and on each building.

The assessment is made as of .lanuary l ofeach year and is based on current values for personal
property and on estimated value as of 1957 fot real property tax. The tax on personal property
must be paid in full together with the return by May 15. The tax on real property may be paid in
two installments by July l and January 1.

3.
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COMMONWEATTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPATITY OF LOiZA
NoTEs To THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT5 {CoNnNuED)

JUNE 30, 2015

3. PRoPERTY TAx (Continued)

The CRIM is responsible for the billing and collections of real and personal property taxes on behalf
of all the municipalities of Puerto Rico. Before the beginning of each fiscal year, the CRIM informs
the Municipality of the estimated amount of property tax expected to be collected for the ensuing
fiscal year. Throughout the year, the CRIM advancei funds to the Municipality based on the initial
estimated collections. The CRIM is required by law to prepare a settlement statement on a fiscal
year basis, where by a comparison is made between the amounts advanced to the Municipality and
amounts actually collected from taxpayers.

This settlement has to be completed on a preliminary basis not later than three months after fiscal
year-end, and a final settlement made not later than six months after year-end. lf the CRIM remits
to the Municipality property tax advances, which are less than the tax actually collected, a

receivable from the CRIM is recorded at June 30. However, if advances exceed the amount actually
collected by the cRlM, a liability to the cRlM is recorded at lune 30.

Residential real property occupied by its owner ii exempt by law from the payment of property

taxes on the first 515,000 of the assessed value. For such exempt amounts, the Puerto Rico

Treasury Department assumes payment of the basic tax to the Municipalities, except for property
assessed at less than 53,500 for which no payment is made. As part of Law No. 83 of August 30,

1991, as amended, the exempt amount to be paid by Puerto Rico Treasury Department to the
Municipalities was frozen as of January !, 7992. ln addition, the law grants a tax exception from the
payment of personal properfy taxes of up to 550,000 of the assessed value to retailers having

annual net sales of less than 5150,000.

The annual rate for fiscal year 2015 is 8.78% fot real property and 6.78% for personal property of
which 1.03% of both tax rates are for the redemption of public debt issued by the Commonwealth of
Puerto Rico. The remaining percentaBe is distributed as follows: (a) 5.0% and 4.0%, respectively,

represent the Municipality's basic property tax rate, which is appropriated for general purposes and

accounted for in the general fund. A portion of such amount is deposited in an equallzation fund
together with a percentage of the net revenues of the Puerto Rico Electronic Lottery and subsidy

from the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico. From such fund, a distribution is made to all

municipalitles; lbl 1.75% represents the special ad valorem tax restricted for debt service and

accounted for in the debt service fund. The Commonwealth contributes an annual tax rate of 0.2%

of the property tax collected and the remaininB rate is paid by the taxpayer.

On January 26, 2000, Public Law 42, as amended, was enacted which authorized the CRIM to obtain

a loan up to S20O million, and for a term not exceeding 30 years, to allow for the financing of the

debt that the municipalities of Puerto Rico have with the CRIM arising from final settlements of
property tax advances versus actual collections through fiscal year 2000-2001. The amount that the
municipalities will collect from the additional property taxes resulting from the increase in the

subsidy from the central Bovernment to the municipalities was assigned through thls law to repay

such loan. The increase in this subsldy was the result of the Public Law 238, enacted on August 15

1999. As of June 30, 2015, the amount due to CRIM amounting to 5706,863 is presented as other

long-term debt (see Note 10)-
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COMMONWEATTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPATITY OF LOIZA

NorEs To THE FrNANcrAr SrarEMEMrs (CorsrlNUED)

JUNE 30, 2015

VOTUME OF BUSINESS TAX

The municipal license tax is levied annually based on the volume of business of certain businesses

and industrial organizations that operate in the Municipality. The tax rates are 1.50% for financing

institutions and .s1c)h fot the other business institutions. The taxpayers must file a return not later
than April 15 of every year and the tax is payable in two installments, due in July 1 and lanuary 1 of
the following fiscal year. The amount levied could be paid with a five percent (5%) discount if
payment is made on or before the filing date. The Municipality levied and collected during the year

ended June 30, 2015, 5455,120 corresponding to the following fiscal year volume of business tax.
This amount was recorded as deferred revenue, and is presented as a liability in the accompanying

financial statements.

SALE TAX

Pursuant to an amendment to Puerto Rico lnternal Revenue Code, Act 117 of July 4, 2006, the
Municipal Legislature approved a city tax contribution (SUT), effective October 3, 2006 to 1.5% over
all transactions of sales of goods and services made-on Loiza boundaries. The retails are required to
file monthly sales tax returns by 10th days following the month in {,vhich the tax are collected.

Pursuant to the provision at the Act 72-2075 and effective July'1, 2015, the citizenship contribution
was uniformity established in L.5%, for all the Municipality of Puerto Rico, of which 1% is collected

by the Municipality and the remaining 0.5% is be collected by the Treasury Department of the
Commonwealth of Puerto Rico. A portion of the amount collected by the Treasury Department is

submitted to Municipal Finance corporation (COFIM, by is its spanish acronyn), a redention fund for
financing capital project to the municipalities.

COFIM is a public corporation and instrumentality of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico, attached to
the Government Development Bank. COFIM is authorized to issue and use other financing

mechanisms to pay or refinance, directly or indirectly, in whole or in part, the debts of the
municipalities of the Commonwealth payable or backed by the municipal sales and use tax. COFIM

receives, from the first revenues of the municipal sales and use tax collected, the greater of: (i) an

amount computed by applying a 0.3% fixed tax rate to the total revenues collected, or (ii) a fixed

amount that increases annually, known as the Annual Fixed lncome. These revenues, which are

deposited in COFIM'S Redemption Fund, are used to pay and secure the debt issued by COFIM- As

an independent corporation, COFIM has the same powers, rights and faculties as the GDB under its

Charter.

INTERGOVERNMENTAT REVENUES

lntergovernmental revenues sources consist of contributions received from certain quasi-public

corporations of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico, such as the Puerto Rico Electric Power Authority.

Also, the Municipality receives some subsidies from the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico which

include, among others, a subsidy for general operations and for the financing of capital

improvements. The intergovernmental revenues are recorded in the General fund, except for those

that are legally restricted for expenditure for specified purposes which are recorded in the Other

Governmental Funds.

5.
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COMMONWEATTH OF PUERTO RICO

ruuHrcrpeuw or lo[za
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAI STATEMENTS (CoNTINUED)

JUNE 30, 2015

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

At June 30, 2015, the Municipality was defendant and/or codefendant in several litigations arising
out of the normal Municipality's operations. Most of the cases are covered by insurance.

Management, after consultation with legal counsel, is of the opinion that the ultimate liability, in

excess of insurance coverage, if any, resulting from such pending litigations would not be material in

relation to the financial position of the Munlcipality.

Amounts received or receivable from grantor agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by
grantor agencies. Any disallowed claims, including amounts already collected, may constitute a

Iiability of the applicable funds. The amount, if any, of the expenditures which may be disallowed by
the grantor cannot be determined at this time, although the Municipality expects such amounts, if
any, to be immaterial.

RESTRICTED DEPOSIT

Restricted cash in the business-type activities consists of:

8.

Replacement reserve
Security deposits
Residual receipts

S193,899
L2,807
78.772

s22s.478

A. Replacement Reserve

The proiect is required under the Project Rental Assistance Contract (PRAC) and federal
regulations, to set aslde amounts to aid in funding extraordinary maintenance and repair and
replacement of capital items in accordance with applicable regulations. Funds may be drawn
from the reserve and used only in accordance with HUD guidelines and with approval of, or as

directed by, HUD.

B. Secu.ity Deposits

The project is required, under federal regulations, to set aside, at the time of the initial
execution of the lease, the tenant's security deposit and its accumulated interest. The project

must refund to the tenant, the full amount of the tenant's security deposit, provided the tenant
does not owe any amount under the lease. The Project may use the tenant's security deposit
balance as a reimbursement for any unpaid amounts the tenant owes under the lease.

C. Residual Receipts

The Project is required, under federal regulations and PRAC, to set aside the surplus project

funds in an interest-bearing residual receipts account when the project funds are more than
needed for the operation of the project, to pay operating expenses, and to make the required
deposits to the replacement reserve. Withdrawals from this account will be made only with the
approval of HUD and for projest purposes, including the reduction of project rental assistance

Pa,ments 
33
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COMMONWEAI-TH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPATITY OF LOiZA

NoTEs To THE FINANCIAT STATEMENTS (coNnNUED)

JUNE 30, 2015

9. CAPITAI ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2015 was as follows:

Balance
June 30. 2014Primary Government

Govemmental activities:
Capital assets not being depreciated:

Land

Capital assets being depreciated:
lnfrastructure
Buildings, park and courts
Furniture and fixtures, automobiles

and equipment

Total capital assets being depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation for:
lnfrastructure
Buildings, parks and courts
Furniture and fixtures, automobiles

and equipment

Total depreciable capital assets, net

Governmental activities capital assets net

Business-type activities:
Capital assets net being depreciated:

Land

Capital assets being depreciated:
Building and improvements
Equipment

Less accumulated depreciation:
Building and improvements and

equipment

Total depreciable capital assets, net

Business activities capital assets, net

S 1.687.s16

22,989,396
70,979,748

4,257,054

38.22s.i98

(7,468,32L1
(407s,666)

(2.23s.669)

173 ,779 .6561

24,445.942

26.133.4s8

109.73s

3,765,421,

334.683
3,500,104

Q.710.O721

790.O32

499,767

s27.033.225

lncreases Decreases

S r.47,500

17,688

165.188

(606,936)
(244,302].

(269.4721
(t.t20.7tol

(9ss.s22)

t9s5.s22)

847
10.107
10,954

(119.66s)

(108.711)

(108.711)

sG,054233)

Balance
,une 30. 2015

s 1.687.s16

23,136,896
LO,979,14A

4,274.742

38.390.786

18,O7s,2s7l
(4,319,968)

(2.s05.141)
(14.900.366)

23,490.420

25.777.936

109.73s

3,166,268
344.790

3,511,058

(2.829.737l.

681,321

79]-,056

s25.968.992
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COMMONWEATTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF tOiZA
NOTES TO THE FINANCNT STATEMENTS (CONNNUED)

JUNE 30, 2015

9. CAPTTAL ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the Municipality as follows:

General administration
Public safety
Public works
Education, culture and recreation

Health, sanitation and welfare
Public relation, tourism and citizen affairs

Housing

Total depreciation expense

Governmental
Activities

S gaa,zsr

57 ,877
518,783

49,736
106,699
38,834

Business-Type
Activities

s119,65s

s119.665s1J20,zl0

TONG-TERM DEBTS
i

Long-term liability actlvity for the year ended lune 30, 2015 was as follows:

Primary Government
Governmental activities:

Bonds and notes
Notes Payable CRIM - Law 42

Compensated absences

Legal settlement
Net pension liability

Tota I

Business-type activities:
Mortgage payable

Total

Additions Reductions

s(1,017,000)
|.2r,9371

s 82,870

2,042.53r

2.rzs,407

Beginning
Balance

s10,610,200
728,aOO

L,969,454
505,904

31.144.930

44.959,288

Ending
Balance

S 9,593,200
706,863

2,O52,324
505,904

33.187.451

46.O4s,752

Due Within
one Year

S 897,ooo
23,3L5

2,O52,324
505,904

1.832.088

s46J91ilf,

(1.038.937) 3.478.543

(42.039) 1.789.999 45.9s5

J A 5G310,0261 547.835J5L s3124199
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1 
10. LONG-TERM DEBrs(CONINUED)
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Governmental activities:

Bonds and notes:

5451,000 series of 1992, payable in one annual installment of 530,000 and

S32,000 untilJanuary 1,2076, interest at 5% due annually.

S1,685,000 series of 1999, payable in annual installments of 580,000 to
5150,000 untilJuly 1,2023, interest ranging from 5.88% to 8% due
semiannually.

S555,000 series of 2002, payable in annual installments of 525,000 and

555,000 untilJuly 1, 2026, interest at 1.47% due semiannually.

S40O,OO0 series of 1997, payable in one annual installment of 56,000 on July
1, 2016, interest at 6.75% due semiannually.

5130,000 series of 2004, payable in annual installments of 55,000 to 510,000
until July 1, 2028, interest ranging from 5.0% to 6.5% due semiannually.

S360,000 series of 2011, payable in an installment of 555,000 to 565,000 on
July L,?o17, interest at 6% due annually.

595,000 series of 2004 payable in annual installments of 53,000 to 57,000
until July 1,2028, interest at 1.72% due semiannually.

5455,000 series of 2004, payable in annual installments of S15,000 to 535,000
until July 1,2028, interest ranging frcm 5.O% to 6.5% due semiannually.

S925,000series of 2005, payable in annual installments of 545,000 to 570,000

s 32,ooo

1,015,000

465,000

40,000

75,000

180,000

69,000

325,000

575,000

720,OOO

440,000

(Continue)

untilJuly l,2074, interest at 1.72% due semiannually.
tl

I

I

t

5820,000 series of 2007, payable in annual installments of 520,000 to 570,000
untilJuly 1, 2032, interest at 1.72% due annually.

S1,155,C100 series of 2008, payable in annual installments of 5135,000 to
S160,000 untilJuly 1,2017, interest ranging at 1.72% due semiannually-
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10. [ONG-TERM DEBTS (CONTINUED)

Governmental activities:

Bonds and notes:

S135,000 series of 2008, payable in annual installments of S10,000 to S20,000

until July 1, 2023, interest a t 1.72% due semiannually. S 105,000

5935,000 series of 2010 payable in two annual installments of 5150,000 and

5165,000 untilJuly 1, 2016 interest at 5% due semiannually. 315,000

S1,033,000 special obligation note series of 2011, payable in month installments

ranging from 5157,000 to S1s1,400 until July 1,2017, interest at 6% due

semiannually. 5O7 
'2OO

5820,000 series of 2011, payable in annual installments ranging from 525,000 to

S7O,0OO until July 1, 2031 interest at 5% due semiannually. { 755,000

S735,000 speciat obligation bonds series of 2010, payable in annual installments

of ranging from 515,000 to 565,000 until July 1, 2035 interest at 6% due

semiannually. 585,000

S1,535,000 series of 2013 payable in annual installments ranging from $30,000

to s125,000 until !!ly r,2037 interest ranginB f rom 6,%to7yo due semiannually. 1,490,000

S1,895,000 series of 2013 payable in annual installments ranging from S55,000

to s170,000 until july 1, 2032 interest ranging from 5% to 7% due semiannually. 1,800,000

Total bonds and notes 9,593,200

Business type-activities:

Two mortgage notes collateralized with land and building, payable in monthly

installment of 54,802 and 51,312, including interest at an annual rate of gyo

5.87% through December 2051. 1'789'999

s11383,XD
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10. IoNG-TERM DEBTS (CoNTINUED)

The annual debt service requirements to maturity bonds and notes payables of lune 30, 2015 are as

follows:

Governmental -tYPe Activities:

Year ended June 30

2016
20L7
2018
2079
zo20
202L-2025
2026-2030
2031-2035
2036-2038

Year ended June 30

20L5
2017
20L8
2079
2020
Thereafter

Princioal

s 897,000
886,800
780,400
399,000
419,000

2,M5,OOO

1,856,000
1,485,000

415.000

s9J93200

I nterest

5 436,27s
395,039
358,254
333,118
315,560

1,270,596
77,0,482
289,298

, 34,350

54_2ail2

Aggregate
Pavment

5 t,3!3,27s
1,281,839
1,138,654

732,118
734,560

3,7L5,596
2,636,4a2
1,774,298

449.350

frJ96JJ2

lnterest

s 27,388
23,L64
18,552
13,511

a,oo7

515,283

s605i05

Business-tYPe activities:

Long-term debt consists of two mortgage notes are payable USDA Rural Development in monthly

installmentsof54,802andSl,3l2includinginterestatanannualrateofg%and6.857%(reduceto
1%) through December 2051. rne land anJuuitding of the Project collateralized the mortgage note'

Mortgage notes payable mature as follows:

Principal

s 4s,9s5
50,180
54,792
59,833
65,337

1,s13,901

stz89j99
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10. LoNG-TERM DEBTS (CONTINUED)

Note payable - CRIM Law 42

Note payable of 9705,863 represents a repayment agreement with GDB and cRlM to repay the

excess of property taxes advances from fiscal years up to 2001. The CRIM will retain the principal

and interest from the property taxes advances. The amounts retained by CRIM will be remitted to

GDB on July 1 of each year through 2032. The repayment agreement is payable in semi-annual

aggregate principal installments of 533,349 including an interest rate of 6.187%.

Year ended June 30

2016
20\7
2018
2079
2020
2021-2025
7026-2030
2031-2032

Principal

s 23,31s
24,740
26,337
27 ,992
29,75L

779,254
243,1O9
\52.32t

s70:5363

lnterest

s 43,382
47,9t7
40,350
3A,705
36,946

754P2e
90,378
14.425

5460.342

Total

s 66,597
66,697
66,697
66,697
66,697

333,487
333,487
t66,746

s1.167.205

11. INTERFUND BATANCES AND ACTIVITIES

BAIANCE DUE TO / FROM OTHER FUNDS:

Balance due to / from other funds at June 30, 2015, consist of the following:

Due to

Other Sovernmental
General fund fundDue from

General fund
Other governrhental fund

Total

s3,359,134
ss.033

ss-033 s3-359,134

Total

S3,3s9,134
s.033

s3.354.167
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INTERFUND BAIANCES AND ACTIVITIES (CONTINUED)

TRANSFER TO / FROM OTHER FUNDS:

Transfer to / from other funds at June 30, 2015 consist of the following:

Transfer out

General fund
Debt service fund
Other governmental fund

Total

Transfer in

General fund Debt services fund

5 1,1ee
L4.235

sf5-434

S51,4s1

83

561J34

Total

s61,4s1
1,199

14.318

s76.968

12. EMPTOYEE.S RETIREMENT PTAN

A. Plon Description - The ERS is a cost-sharing, multi-employer defined benefit pension plan

administered by the Puerto Rico Government Employees ahd Judiciary Retirement systems

Administration (the ERS and JRS Administration). lt is a trust created by Act no. 447 on May 15,

1951 (Act no.447\, as amended, to provide pension and other benefits to retired employees of the

commonwealth, its public corporations and municipalities of Puerto Rico. The ERS began operations

on January L, lgSZ, at which date, contributions by employers and participating employees

commenced. The ERS is a pension trust fund ofthe Commonwealth'

The ERS consists of different benefit structures pursuant to ACT No.447, as amended, including a

cost-sharing, multi-employer, defined benefit program, a defined contribution program (system

2000 program) and a defied contribution hybrid program. The pension plan is sponsored by the

Commonwealth, public corporations, and municipalities of Puerto Rico'

substantially all full-time employees of the commonwealth and its instrumentalities (73

commonwealth agencies, TS municipalities, and 55 public corporations, including the ERS) are

covered by the ERS. Membership is mandatory for all regular, appointed' and temporary

employeesoftheCommonwealth,Commonwealthsecretaries,headofpublicagenciesand
instrumentalities, among others.

The benefits provided to members of the ERS are established by commonwealth law and may be

amended onlv by the Legislature with the Governo/s approval. Benefit provisions very depending

on date of membershiP.

a

tr
I
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COMMONWEATTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF tOiZA

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAT STATEMENfS (CONTINUED)

JUNE 30, 2015

12. EMPtoYEE'S RETIREMENT PLAN (Continued)

On April 4, 2013, the Legislature enacted Act No 3 which amended Act No' 447' Act no l of

February 15, 1990 ("Act N;'1") and Act No' 305 of September 24' 1999 ("Act No 305 orSvstem

200") to establish, 
".ong 

oif'"r. it'ing'' 
" 

defined contribution program similar to the System 2000

program (the Oefined Coniriiuti"n iyUria program) to be administered by the ERS. Act No 3 of

2013, in conjunction witn otier recent funding and design changes' provided for a comprehensive

pension desiBn of tire rns.- nti regular emplo-yees hired for the first time on or after JulY 1, 2013,

and former emptoyees *ho p.ii.ip"t"a in if'" O"iin"a Benefit Program and the system 2000

Pro8ram, and were rehired on or after July 1' 2013' became members of the Defined Contribution

Hybrid Program as a condition to their employment ln addition' employees who at June 30' 2013'

were participants of p'"'io" p[n'wlll become part of the Defined Contribution Hybrid Program'

Act No. 3 froze all retirern'ent'benefits accrued through lune 30, 2012 under the Defined Benefit

Program,andthereafter,allfuturebenefitswillaccrueunderthedefinedcontributionformulaused
forthe2000Syrt".p'og'"'p'nitiptn*CeasinBfuturedefinedbenefitaccrualsunderAct44T
and Act 1 And converting il a'member-funded hybiid plan will result in lower benefit payments as

these tiers wind ao*n, 
"nj 

*itt make all future emploier contributlons available to pay benefits and

bonds PaYable debt service'

certain provisions are different for the three groups of memberi who entered the ERS prior to iulY

1,2013 as described below:

1. Members of Act No' 447 are generally those members hired on or after April 1' 1990

(Defined Benefit Program)'

2. Members of Act No 1 are generally those members hired on or after April 1' 1990 and on or

before December 3!,1ggg (Defined Program)'

3. Membersof Act No 305 are generally those members hired on or after January 1' 2000 and

on or before .Jr""- ao, 
-zori 

toefined contribution Program). Each member has a no

forfeitable right to the value of his/her account' Members have three options to invest

their contributio;' 
-in'"tt"nt 

income is credited to the membe/s account semiannually'

The Commonwealth does not guarantee benefits at retirement age'

All regular employees hired for the first time on or after July 1' 2013' and former employees who

participated in the defined benefit program and the system 2ooo program, and were rehired on or

after July l, zora, uecome me,u",.. o} tr'" defined contribution hybrid program as a condition to

their employmen,. ,n .Ja,a"n, employees who at June 30, ?Or3, were participants of previous

programs will become o"i "r 
ii," Defined contribution Hybrid Program. Each member has a no

forfeitablerighttothevalueofhis/hercontributionstotheDefinedcontributionHybridaccount.
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12. EMPTOYEE'S RETIREMENT PLAN (Continued)

The assets of the defined benefit program, the defined contribution program and the defined

contribution hybrid program are pooled and invested by the ERS. Future benefit payments will be

paid from the same pool of assets. ln addition, employers' contributions for members hired on or

after January 1, 2000 will be used by the ERS to reduce the unfunded status of the Defined Benefit

Program.

This summary of plan provisions is intended to describe the essential features of the plan. All

eligibility requlrements and benefit amounts shall be determined in strict accordance with the plan

document itself.

B. Effective for fiscat year ended June 30, 2015, the Municipality implemented de provision

of the GASB 68, which accounting and Financial Reporting for Pension as recommended which

required that the Municipalities' governmental-wide financial statements present the

proportional net pension liability of the ERS. ln addition, the GASB 68 required among other the

following disclosures:

1. Employer's proportionate share amount of collective netlension liability'

2. Employer,s proportionate percentage of collective net pension liability (including the basis

on which it was determined) and change on its proportion since prior measurement debts.

3. Significant assumption used to measure total pension liability, including inflation, salary

changes, discounts rate and mortality.

4. Measurement date of collective net pension liability and date of actuarial valuation on

which the total liability is base.

5. lnformation about plan fiduclary net position'

other information about the net pension liabilities should be disclosed as require supplemental

information.

c. on April 4, 2014, the Governor of Puerto Rico signed into law Act No. 3 of 2014, which

representsacomprehensivereformoftheERs.ActNo.3becameeffectiveonJulyl2o!4and
amended the provisions of the different benefit structures under the ERS, including, but not

limited to, the followinS:

1. For active participants of the contributory defined benefit programs under Act No'

447 of fgs! and Act No. 1of 1990, all retirement benefits accrued through June 30,

2014 were frozen, and thereafter, all future benefits will accrue under the defined

contribution formula used for System 2OOO participants, and will be paid at

retirement through a lifetime annuity.

2. lncreased the minimum pension for current retirees from 5400 to 5500 per month'

E
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COMMONWEATTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF LOIZA

NorEs To THE FlNANclAt STATEMENTS (coNTlNUEo)

JUNE 30, 2015

12. EMPTOYEE'S RETIREMENT PIAN (Continued)

3. lncrease the retirement age in a range within 58 to 63 years of age depending the

5.

7.

act under which the employee is eligible for retirement.

Transitioning active participants under Act No. l and Act No. 447 to a defined

contribution plan similar to System 2000.

Eliminated the "merit annuity'' available to participants who joined the ERS prior to

April 1, 1990.

The employee contribution rate was increasedfrom 8-275% to 70%.

For System 2OO0 participants, the retirement benefits will no longer be paid as a

lump sum distribution, instead, they wlll be paid through a lifetime annuity'

Eliminated or reduced various retirement benefits previously granted by special

laws, including Christmas and summer bonusei. The Christmas bonus payable to

current retirees was reduced from 5500 to S2O0 and was elimlnated for future

retirees. The summer bonus was eliminateS. Resulting employer contribution

savings will be contributed to the ERS.

Disability benefits were eliminated and substituted for a mandatory disability

insurance policy.

10. Survivor benefits were modified.

The effect in the financial statement as of lune 30, 2015 of the implementations of GASB 68 is as

follow:

New Accounting Standards

4.

9.

Assets
Deferred outflows of resources

Liabilities
Deferred inflows of resources

Expenses

Net Position (deficit)

The net position as Prior reported

GASB 58.

Current Accounting
Standards (GASB 27)

5 32,4L2,493

79,240,199
455,120

L4,r74,839
7,5tO,394

was restated by 530,147,013 due to

(GASB 68)

532,477,493
1,s73347

57,427,660
770,700

t5,70L,479
(22,906,6t91

the of implementation of
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JUNE 30, 2015

12. EMPTOYEE'S RETIREMENT PLAN (Continued)

pension Liabilities, Expense, and Deferred outflows of Resources and Deferred lnflows of

Resoutces Related to Pensions

At June 30, 2015, the Munlcipality reported a liability of s33,187,461 for its proportionate share of

the net pension liability. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2o\4, and the total

pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation

as of that date. The Municipality proportion of the net pension liability was based on a projection of

the Municlpality long-term share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the total projected

contributions of the State and all participating school districts, actuarially determined. At June 30,

2014, the Municipality proportion was .11029 percent.

As a result of its requirement to contribute to ERS, the Municipality recognized expense of

57,522,64}for the year ended June 30, 2015. At June 30, 2015, the Municipality reported deferred

outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources from the following sources as a result of its

requirement to contribute to ERS:

Pension contributions subsequent to measurement date

Differences between actual and expected experience

Changes in assumptions
Change in employer's proportion and differences

Between the employe/s contributions and the

employer's proportionate share of contributions

Net differences between projected and actual earnings

on plan investments

Tota I

Deferred
Outflows of
Resources

s 380,511

7.L32.776

$1113J82

Deferred
lnflows of
Resources

s26s,s80

s265t80
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12. EMPLOYEE'S RETIREMENT PIAN (Continued)

The total pension liabilitY in the
following actuarial assumPtions:

Valuation date
Measurement date
Amortization method
Actuarial cost method
Remaining amortization Period
Actuarial assumptions:

Discount rate
lnflation
Payroll growth
Projected salary increase
lnvestment rate of return
Mortality

lune 30, 2014 actuarial valuations was determined using the

Net Pension liability

Total pension liability
Fiduciary net position
Net pension liabllity
Fiduciary net position as a % of total pension liability

covered payroll
Net pension liability as a % covered payroll

Total

s30,219,s17,000
L27 , aa,OOO

30,092,029,000
o.420/"

S3,489,096,000
462.46%

Proportional Share

(o.L1129yol

S33,328,063
140,602

33,L87 ,46L
o.42%

53,848,004
a62.46%

T

T

E

i
T

T:

*,
i

T.

*
rE-

l:

t?.

*.
tf;I-t

June 30, 2014
June 30, 2014
18 years closed (beginning July l,2ot4l,level dollar
Entry-age normal cost method
18 years

4.29%
N/A
N/A
None
3.to%
For general employees nol covered under Act No. 127,

RP-2000 Employee Mortality Rates for males and females
projected on a generational basis using Scale AA' For

members covered undei Act No. 127, RP-2000 Employee

Mortality Rates from the blue collar adjustments for
males and females, projected on a generational basis

using Scale AA. As generational tables, they reflect
mortality improvements both before and after the
measurement date. LOOYo of deaths while in active

services are assumed to be occupational for members

covered under Act No. 127.

T

The net pension liability (information provided by Actuaries Valuation Report) as of June 30, 2014 is

as follows:

lune 30, 2014
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EMPTOYEE'S RETIREMENT PLAN (Continued)

The following presents the Municipality proportionate share of the net penslon liability using the

discount rate of 4.29%, as well as what the Municipality a proportionate share of the net pension

liabilities would be if it was calculate using a discount rate that is 1% lower 13.29%l or 1% higher

(5.29%) than the current rate:

Total Pension Liability

Fiduciary Net Position

Net Pension Liability

7%

Decrease
3.29%

s33,385,81s

740,602

fi.246.213

Current
Discount Rate

4.29%

S33,328,063

140,602

s33JIpl1g1

t

The discount rates used to measure total pension liabitity were as foJlow:

Discount rate

LonB-term expected rate of return net of investment expense

Municipal bond rate+

*Bond Buyer General Obligation 20-Bond Municipal Bond lndex

June 30, 2013

4.63%

6.40%

4.63%

r%
lncrease
5.29%

529,628,067

t40.602

529.487465

June 30, 2014

4.29%

6.75%

4.29%
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12. EMPLOYEE'S RETIREMENT PLAN (Continued)

Change in Net pension Liabilities (information provided by Actuaries Valuation Report) for the Year

ended June 30, 2015 was a follows:

lncrease (Decrease)

changes in net pension Plan Fiduciary net

liability TotalPension liability position

Batance as ofjune 30, 2013 s 28,941,368,000 5 701,351,000

Changes for the year:

Net pension liability

s28,240,oo7,ooo

419,183,000

1,321,474,000

(51,855,000)

' 1,198,308,000

29,530,000
25,875,000

792,947,OOO

{359,862,000)
(2s3,ss8,000)
(660.024.000)

s30892-029p00

Proportional
5hare

s31,144,930

T

T

T

Service Cost

lnterest on total pension

liability
Effed of plan changes

Effect of
economic/demographic
(gains)of losses (51,855,000)

Effect of assumptions
changes or inputs 1,198,308,000

Benefit payments {1,598,955,000)
Administrative Expenses

Other Expenses

Cost of Bonds

Member Contributions
Net lnvestment lncome
Employer Contributions

Balance as ofJune 30, 2014

419,183,000

7,327,474,00O

(1,s98,965,000)
(29,530,000)
(25,87s,000)

(192,947,000)

3s9,862,000
253,5s8,000
660.024.000

5130,219l1200q) s---122488-000

AMOUNT

S380,611
355,438
323,513

462,302

7,457,472

(68,218)

7,327,5'12

32,568
28,537

272,795

{396,879)
1219,6401
1727.9781

533J648t

The employer contribution to the above mentioned plans during the three year ended June

2O!5,2Or4 and 2013 was as follow. This amounts represented the required contribution for

corresponding year.

30,
the

YEAR

20L5
2014
20t3
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EMPTOYEE'S RETIREMENT PLAN (Continued)

The historical trend information regarding the accumulation of assets and pension benefit obligation
in the ERS is not available. For the ten-year trend information, refer to the separately issued

financial statements of the ERS as of and for the fiscal year ended lune 30, 2074. The P.R.

Retirement Plan Administration provides additional information of the ERS. They issue a public

available financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information
for ERS, as a component unit of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico. That report may be obtained by

writing to the Administration at PO Box 42003, Minillas Station, San Juan, P.R. 00940.

CONTINGENCIES

Amounts received or receivable from grantor agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by
grantor agencles. Any disallowed claims, including amounts already collected, may constitute a

liability of the applicable funds. The amount, if any, of the expenditures which may be disallowed by

the grantor cannot be determined at this time, although the Municipality expects such amounts, if
any, to be immaterial. - 

"
The Municipality is defendant and/or codefendant in several litigations arising out of the normal
Municipality's operations. Most of the cases are covered bi7 insurance. Management, after
consultation with legal counsel is of the opinion that the ultimate liability, in excess of insurance

coverage, if any, resulting from such pending litigations will not have a material adverse effect on
the Municipality's financial position.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Management has evaluated subsequent events through March 24, 2015, which is the date the
financial statements were available to be issued and determined that no material subsequent
events require an estimate to be recorded or disclosed as of June 30, 2015.

15. RESTATEMENTS

The 2014 net assets of governmental activities has

implementation of GAsB 58 as follows:

Net assets as previous reported
Restatements

Net assets as restated

been restated for 530,417,013 as result of

511,926,39s
(30.417.013)

s(18.490.618)

13.

I

I

14.

4a
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPATITY OF LOiZA

ScHEDUtE OF BUDGETARY CoMPARISoN

FoR THE YEAR ENDEDJUNE 30, 2015

ORIGINAT

BUDGET

GENERAL FUND

AMMENDED
BUDGET ACTUAI

VARIANCE

WITH FINAT BUDGET

FAVORABLE

IUNFAVORABTEI

5 (221,378)
481,189
(s91,s10)

(3,8s0)
(49,5761
(52,8ss)

(127,97L1

873.014

(307 ,1231

(328,7771

709,420

(277],

35,807
(60,s03)

|L.278,786l.

(1.s23.116)

Revenues:
Taxes:

Property taxes
Municipal tax
Sales tax
Construction excise tax

Licenses and permits

lnterest
Rent
Grants and entitlements
Other

Total revenues

Expendhures:
General administration
Public safety
Education, culture and

recreational
Public relation, tourism and

citizens affairs
Public works and sanitation
Health, sanitation and welfare

Total expenditures

Excess of expenditures over
revenues

s 2,000,40s
646,O57

555,128
5,000

84,462
81,440

7,199,068
4.000

10.675,560

6,073,890
L,777 ,465

457 ,468

433,964
7,859,897

672.476

10.675,560

)

s 2,000,40s
646,057

655,128
. 5,000
84,462
aL440

7,199,068
4,000

10.675,550

5,073,590
1,177 ,865

457 ,468

433,964
1,859,897

672,47 6

10,675.560

s

s 2,000,40s
424,679
481,189

63,618
1,150

f 34,885
28,585

" 7,077,757
877 ,O14

10.982.683

6,402,667
1,058,44s

457 ,745

536,669
1,920,400
L,7L2.750

t2.198,676

I

-E

s(tz1s.999 s1L215-993)

E
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COMMONWEATTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPAUTY OF LOfZA

NoTES TO SCHEDUI.E OF BUDGETARY COMPARISON

JUNE 30, 2015

1. BUDGETS AND BUDGETARY ACCOUNTING

The Municipality follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the

financial statements:

1) Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control device during the year for

theGeneralFund.FormalbudSetaryintegrationisnotemployedforspecialrevenuefunds
because effective budgetary control is alternatively achieved through legal and contractual grant

requirements Provisions.

2) On or before May 15, the Mayor submits to the Munlcipal Legislative Body a proposed operating

budgetforthefiscalyearcommencingthefollowingJulyl.Theoperatingbudgetincludes
proposed expenditures and the means for financing them'

3) Prior to June 13, the budget is legally enacted through passage of an ordinance'

4)TheMunicipalLegislativeBodyapproves,byordinancebudSetappropriationsbyfunctional
basis. The Mayor is authorized to transfer budgeted amounts'between departments within any

fund;however,anyrevisionsthatalterthetotalappropriationsofanyfundmustbeapproved
by the Municipal Legislative Body.

5)Unusedappropriationsfortheannualbudgetedfundslapseattheendoftheyear.

The budget is prepared on the budgetary basis of accounting. The actual results of operations,

presented in the statement of Revenues and Expenditures - Budget and Actual General Fund, is

in conformity with the budgetary accounting of the Municipality for a better comparison with

the budget information.

The presentation of the budgetary data excludes other appropriations such as capital projects,

debtserviceandspecialrevenuefundsbecauseprojectsarefundedonamulti-yearnature,
generallyrequiringseveralyearstocompleteoreffectivebudgetarycontrolisalternatively
achieved through general obligation bond indentures and legal and contractual grant agreement

provisions.
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COMMONWEATIH OF PUERTO RICO

MUT{ICIPAUTY OF LC'iZA

NOIES TO SC}IEIX'II OF BT'DGEIANY COillPANEO

JU E !Ir, m15

RECOilgUATION OF GAAPTO BUDGETARY BASIS

Adjustments necessary to reconcile the revenues and expenditures of the General Fund at the end

ofihe year, from the generally accepted accountin8 principles to budgetary basis, are as follows:

Excess of expenditures over revenues, budgetary basis

Adjustments to accounts payable and accrued expenses to
adjust expenses from budgetary basis to modified accrual

basis

Adjustments to accounts receivable to adiust revenue

from budgetary basis to modified accrual

Excess of revenues and other financial sources under f
expenditure and other financial sources per generally

accepted accounting PrinciPle I

s(1,21s,es3)

slrpxrSos)

(389,871)

1307,4411
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPATITY OF IOIZA

SCHEDUTE OF PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABII-ITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

SCHEDUTE OF PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION I.IABIIITY

2015

' Proportion ofthe net pension liability o'o7557%

Proportionate share of the net pension tiability 522,739,173

Covered - employee payroll 53,270,697

Proportionate share of the net pension liability as percentage of covered-

employee payroll 695'24%

Plan's fiduciary net Position 595,343

Plan's fiduciary net position as a percentage ofthe pension liability - O'42%

Notes to Schedule:

Benefit change: ln 2015, benefit terms were modified to base public safety employee pensions on a

final three-year average salary instead of a final five-year average salary.

Changes Assumptions: ln 2015, amounts reported as changes in assumptlons resulted primarily

from ad.iustments to expected retirement ages of general employees.

*Fiscal year 2015 was the first year of implementation, therefore only one year is shown.

The amounts presented have a measurement date of June 30, 2014.

Data Reference: Employees' Retirement system of the Government of the commonwealth of

Puerto Rico; Actuarial Valuation Report.
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COMMO{TWEATIH OF ruERTO RICO

MUilICIPAUTVOF tOiZA
scHEDUt"E OF COIfrRlEtmoNs

FOR THE YEAR ETIX'ED JUITE !M, 2015

contractually required contribution (actuarially determinedl

Contribution in relation to the actuarially required contributions

contribution defi ciency

Conered -employee PaYroll

Contributions as a percentage of covered - employee payroll

Note to schedule:
.c

Fiscal year 2015 was the first year of implementation, therefore one year is presented'

I

2015

51,903,2s1

380.611

ilru,w
3,270,69L

11.@%

s4



L

L

L

L

L

I
L

i

L!

I

L
I
li

,d

COMMOI{WEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUI{ ICI PAIITY OF tOiZA
SGEDUTE OF EPE DIruRES OF FCDGR'TL AWANDS

FoR THE YEAR E]{DED JUI{E !}0, 2015
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COMMONWEATTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNTCTPAUTY OF rO(ZA
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDTTURES OF FEDEMLAWARDS

YEAR ENDED,UNE 30, 2015

NUMBER DISBURSEMENT

US Department of Housing and Urban
. Develooment

Passed through:
Municipal Service Administration:

Community Development Block Grant 14.228 5386,477
Municipality of San Juan Housing Opportunities

for Persons with AIDS (HoPWA) t4.247 L52,674
Puerto Rico Department of Family:

Direct Program:
Section 8- Housfng Choice Voucherc 14.871 45,524

584.625

Us Department of Health and Human services
Passed through:

PR Department of Family:
Child Care and Development Block Grant

Us Department of Asriculture
Passed through:

PR Department of Education:
Child and Adult Food Program

93.s7s 108,458

10.558 11,653

US Department of EnerEy

Passed through:
PR Energy Affairs Administration:

Energy Efficiency and Conservation Grant 81.128 t.257

s70s.993

i,
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COMMOITII'EALTH ()F PUERTO RICO

MU'TIICIPAIITY OT IOIZA
]IIOTES TO Sc}IEDUtf, OF ffiOIITJRES OF FEDENAT'AWARIIS

Jur! !X),2ms

1. BASIS OF PRESE]|TATIOT{:

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards includes the federal grant activity of
Municipality of Loiza and is prepared on the modified accrual basis of accounting. Ac,cordingly,

amounts presented in the accompanying schedule agree to amounts presented in the basic financial

statements.

,}
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REPOf,T O'{ ITTTERNAL COI'TROI. OVER FINATCI'IL REPOf,IING AIID
OIT COMPUATiICEAilD OIHER MATIERS BASED OT{ AlT AUTXTOF

FI]IIAT{CUII. STATEMEI{TS PERR)RMED ITT AOOORDAI|CE wlTTI
GOI'ERNMENT AUDMilG STAI{DARDS
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CARLOS R. DIAZ, CPA, PSC
po mx 408, 7 SALA5 TORREs sT, AGUAS BUiNAS, PUEBTO RtaO m7o3 TEL:7a7 732-8070 FAX:7a7-1324fa5 EMAL cCi.2@€rlosrdi.2cpa @m

INDEPENDENT AUDITOtrS REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROT OVER FINANCIAT REPORTING AT{D ON

COMPTIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AIII AUDIT OF FINANCIAT STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN

ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDTNNG STANDARDS

To Honorable Mayor and
Municipality Legislative BodY

Municipality of Loiza

Loiza, Puerto Rico

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of

America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Stondords

issued by the Comptroller General of the United Statet the financial statements of the governmental

activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Municipality of Loiza,

Puerto Rico, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2015, and the related notes to the financial

statements, which collectively comprise Municipality of Loiza, Puerto Rico's basic financial statements,

and have issued our report thereon dated June 23,2016. Our report include a reference to other auditor

who audited the financial statements of Brisas de Loiza Project's financial statements. This report does

not include the results of the other auditor testing of internal control over financial reporting or

compliance and other matters that are reported on separately by those auditors.

lnternal Control over Financial Reporting

ln planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Municipality of Loiza,
puerto Rico's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the

financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
Municipality of Loiza, Puerto Rico's intemal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the

effectiveness of Municipality of Loiza, Puerto Rico-s internal control.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the preceding paragraph

and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal controlthat might be material weaknesses or

significant deficiencies and therefore, material weakness or significant deficiencies may exist that were

not identified. However, as described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs we

identified certain deficiencies in internal control that we considered to be a material weakness.

A deficiency in internol control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow

management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or

detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A moterrol weokness is a deficiency, or a

combination of deficienciet in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibilitY that a material

misstatement of the entivs financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a

timely basis. We considered the deficiency described in the accompanying schedule of findings and

questioned costs to be material weakness (Finding number 2015{11. A significont deficiency is a

deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material

weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with govemance.

MEMAER:
American lnstitute of Certified Public Accountants
Puerto Rico society of Certified Public Accountant



compliance and other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Municipality of Loiza, Puerto Rico's financial

statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain

provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have

a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing

an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we

do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed instances of noncompliance or other

matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing standords and which are

described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned cost as items 2015-01 and 2015-02'

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testin8 of internal control and

compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an oplnion on the effectiveness of the

entiq/s Internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in

accordance with Government Auditing stondards in considering the entity's internal control and

compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose'

-{*ffi+
CadotR. Diaz. CPA, PSC

Llcense No. 275

Expire December 1, 2018
June 23, 2015
Aguas Buenas, Puerto Rico

The stamp No- E210261 of the Puerto Rico

Society of Certified Public Accountants was

affixed to the original of this report.
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REPOf,T OtT COMP1IAITCE U'ITH REqUIREMET{TS

APPUCABTETO EACH MA'OR PROGRAill AITD

OT I'TIERTTAI. CO{ITROL OVER COMPUAT{CT

IN ACCORDATCE wlTH OMB ORCUIIR A.133
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We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major

federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of Municipality of Loiza,

Puerto Rico's compliance.

Opinion on Eoch Moior Federal Program

ln our opinion, Municipality ol Loiza, Puerto Rico complied, in all material respects, with the types of

compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its

major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2015.

Report on lnternal Control over Compliance

Management of Municipality of Loiza, Puerto Rico is responsible for establishing and maintaining

effective internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above.

ln planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered Municipality of Loiza, Puerto Rico's

internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material

effect on each maior federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the

circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal program

and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but

not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance.

Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Municipality of Loiza, Puerto Rico's

internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internol control over complionce exists when the design or operation of a control over

compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their

assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance

requirement of a federal proBram on a timely basis. A moterial weokness in internol control over

complionce is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that

there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of

a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis- A significont

deficiency in internol control over complionce is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal

control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe

than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention

by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first

paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over

compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any

deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However,

material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

I
1t
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The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance js solely to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of
OMB Grcular A-133. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

1\-*=fu
Cado*. Diaz, CPA, PSC

License No. 275
Expire December 1, 2018

June 23, 2015
Aguas Buenas, Puerto Rico

The stamp No. E210262 ofthe Puerto Rico

Society of Certified Public Accountants was
affixed to the original of this report.

*
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COMMOT{WEAITI{ OF PUERTO RICO

MUIIIOPAUTY OF LOiZA
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPAUTY OF LOIZA

SCHEDUTE OF FINDINGS AND QUESNONED COST5

FoR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

SECflON I . SUMMARY OF AUDITOR'S RESUTTS

Financial Statements

Type of auditor's report issued

lnternal control over financial reporting:

. Material weakness identified?
o Significant deficiencY identified

that is not considered to be material weaknesses?

Noncompliance material to financial statement noted?

Federal Awards

lnternal control over major programs:

r Material weakness identified?
. Significant deficiency identified that are not considered

to be material weakness

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for
major programs

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be

reported in accordance with section 510(a) of
Circular A-133

ldentification of major programs:

CFA Number(s)

14.228

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A

and type B programs:

Audit qualified as low-risk audited?

Qualified

X yes

yes

X yes

X yes

_yes

_no

Xno

no

_no

Xno

Qualified

llves

Name of Federal Program

Community Development
Block Grants

S3oo,ooo

-yes
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COMMONWEATTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPATITY OF TOiZA

ScHEDULE OF Fl Dlttcs AND QuEsnol{ED Cosls

FoR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

SECTION II . FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS

Finding No. 2015-1 - General Ledger

The Municipality does not have the accounting practices, policies or internal controls in place to provide

for the preparation of financial statements, on a timely basis, in accordance with accounting principles

generally accepted in the United states of America ("generally accepted accounting prlnciples"). The

accounting system does not provide for a self balancing set of accounts for each fund operated by the

Municipality, recording cash and other financial resources, together with all related assets, liabilitles,

revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances. Therefore, the financial statements must be

prepared using financial information obtained from various departments and accounting records. The

records are not integrated, and do not follow a double entry system (debit credits). As a result, the

records required significant adjustments in order to present the financial position and results of

operations of the Municipality in conformity with accounting princlples generally accepted in the United

States of America.

The Municipality's accounting system does not provide for a subsidiary ledger of account payable and

interfund balance that reconcile to the general ledger account balances.

The continued failure to have an adequate accounting system prevents the Municipality from having

current, accurate and reliable financial reports and information necessary for management to take

efficient and effective actions, including corrective actions when plans and objectives are not belng met.

Recommendation

The Municipality should adopt and implement a plan to convert its accounting system to an integrated

system that would allow for the monthly closing of the general ledger, as well as the preparation of

ylar-end financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the united

States of America.

This plan should Provide for:

a. Assessment of the financial accounting and reporting needs in order to take the necessary steps to

meet the financial reporting requirements of GASB Statements No' 34'

b. The preparation of periodic financial reports to be submltted to the Finance Director and all other

interested entities.

c. Adequate training of all accounting personnel to improve the understanding of the system and to

promote operational efficiencY.
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COMMOIIWEATT}I OF PUERTO RICO

MUITICIPAIITY OF IOIZA
SCHEDUE OF Frr{Dr Gs Ar{D QuEsnoI{ED Cosrs

FoRTHEYEAn E DcD JU E 30,2015

SECNOil III. - FEDEMT AWARDS FII{DINGS AND QUESNOilED CO$S

None
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